ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON | N- STATE ENERGY
February 21, 2013
7:30 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Cick Bishop, Co-Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Cathy G essel
COW TTEE CALENDAR
PRESENTATI ONS: ALASKA | NDEPENDENT PONER PRODUCERS
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER
DUFF M TCHELL, Executive Director
Al aska | ndependent Power Producers Association (Al PPA)
Busi ness Manager
Juneau Hydropower, Inc.
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TION  STATEMENT: Provided an overview of AIPPA and the
Sweet heart Lake Hydroel ectric Project.
M KE CRAFT, Oaner
Delta Wnd Farm
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview of the Delta Wnd Farm

ETHAN SCHUTT, Senior Vice President

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -1- February 21, 2013



Cook Inlet Region, Incorporated (CIRI)

Fire Island Wnd Farm

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview of the Fire Island W nd
Proj ect.

BOB GRIMWM CEO

Al aska Power & Tel ephone

Port Townsend, WA

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Al aska Power &
Tel ephone’' s alternative energy projects.

JOEL GROVES, Project Manager

Fi shhook Renewabl e Energy, LLC

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Fishhook Renewabl e
Energy's hydroel ectric project.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

7:30: 02 AM

CO- CHAIR CLICK BISHOP called the Senate Special Committee on In-
State Energy neeting to order at 7:30 a.m Present at the call
to order were Senators Mcciche, Egan, Welechowski, Co-Chair
Coghi || and Co-Chair Bi shop.

COCHAIR BISHOP welconed Senator GG essel to the committee
neeti ng.

PRESENTATI ONS: Al aska | ndependent Power Producers

7:30: 48 AM
CO CHAI R BI SHOP announced that the order of business would be
overvi ews from the Al aska | ndependent Power Pr oducers

Associ ation (Al PPA) by the follow ng individuals:

e Duff Mtchell, AIPPA Executive Director and Business
Manager for Juneau Hydropower, Inc.

 Mke Craft, Delta Wnd Farm

e Ethan Schutt, CIRI-Fire Island Wnd Farm

e Bob Gim CEO Al aska Power & Tel ephone.

« Joel Goves, Fishhook Renewabl e Energy, LLC.

7:31:44 AM

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 2- February 21, 2013



DUFF M TCHELL, Executive Director, Al aska |ndependent Power
Producers Association (AIPPA), and Business Mnager, Juneau
Hydr opower, 1Inc., thanked the commttee for allowing Al PPA to
provide their insights and understanding from Al aska's |eading
private power producers. He said Al PPA would share their vision
for energy opportunities, challenges, and solutions facing the
devel opnment of donestic power in Al aska' s | ocal econom es.

MR MTCHELL said AlIPPA developers and operators invest in
Alaska and take the risk away from public wutilities. He
expl ained that to date, AIPPA had collectively invested mllions
of dollars and created hundreds of jobs in Al aska.

7:34: 34 AM

He said AIPPA's role was providing private resources, know how,
and hard work to nmake energy happen. He explained that
conpetitive power <created a market force that produced the
publ i c-benefit to stabilize and reduce energy prices over tine.
He said AIPPA's renewable resources were derived from w nd,
hydr opower, tidal, and natural gas.

He said AIPPA helped Alaska by providing private-dollars to
assist in the public benefit of devel oping power for Al askans.
He explained that Independent Power Producers (IPP) would
continue to put up the devel opnent and risk nonies at no expense
to the utilities or rate payers. He stated that |IPP s actions
allowed wutilities to wuse their resources to keep up on
mai nt enance, reliability, and operations. He said IPP had to
conpete at the wholesale |evel and therefore had no choice but
to understand their local markets to find solutions and w sely
invest their nonies. He detailed that PP  hired |ocal
environnmental scientists, permtting personnel, construction
enpl oyees, and provided operational jobs that paid wages to
raise one's famlies on. He said energy projects typically had a
life of 20 to 50 years and I PP had no choice but to understand
the long term view of developing Alaska' s energy resources to
elimnate diesel generation dependency. He declared that AlPPA
was a team player with the state and local utilities. He noted
that AIPPA was at tinmes the assisters or the drivers in
assisting Alaska in neeting an energy goal for 50 percent
renewabl e energy by the 2025.

He stated that Al aska's enornous energy potential was virtually
unt apped. He said Alaska's resource potential could be unlocked
with the right regulatory reginme, attitude, and direction. He
remar ked that Al aska did not have the funds or ability to "do it
all" wth finite financial resources. He noted that Al aska did

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 3- February 21, 2013



have the ability to encourage private investnent and devel opnment
to help fill the financial gaps. He explained that |PP generated
38 percent of the nation's net power generation, in Alaska it
was 3 percent.

7:39:10 AM
SENATOR M CCI CHE asked how an independent power producer was
defi ned.

MR M TCHELL answered that IPP put up their own noney and
develop their projects wth the intent to sell to |oca

utilities at a wholesale rate. He explained that |IPP privately
conpeted to entertain what a wutility could normally produce
t henmsel ves. He stated that the burden was on the IPP to produce
energy nore cheaply than local utilities. He specified that |PP
were conpletely private and allowed to apply for state grants

He stated that Alaska had sonme of the nation's highest energy
costs and economc potential in resource devel opment could not
be realized unless energy prices were reduced. He said high
energy costs affected residential, comrercial, industrial, and
transportation sectors. He remarked that Alaska' s industries
were electricity intensive and noted electricity accounted for
30 to 40 percent of the mning industry's costs. He said the
fish processing industry's energy use for freezing and canning
were |arge operational costs. He noted extensive energy use by
government buildings, schools, tinber industry, and mlitary
bases.

He explained that high cost energy comunities had becone nore
and nore dependent on governnent services. He said a comunity
wi t hout jobs had no econony and that led to nore dependency. He
stated that high energy costs sonetines repelled or discouraged
econom ¢ devel opnent. He said the Bush had been ravi shed by high
cost energy and the word "crisis" was appropriate in certain
parts of Al aska.

He declared that energy problenms were only going to get worse as
the state dealt with declining oil revenues and prograns such as
Power Cost Equalization (PCE) were dependent on funding from oil
revenues. He said AIPPA believed that Al aska's econony could be
diversified from the oil sector and allow other electrical
resources to be developed as a foundation for Alaska's future
econony.

He reiterated that Al aska had the resources and |PP had the
know how, private sector funding, and financial capital ready to

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -4- February 21, 2013



devel op energy projects if access to markets was avail able. He
stated that man-made problens could be nman-solved. He noted that
the Chinese word for "crisis" was conposed of the synbols for
"danger" and "opportunity."” He stated that AIPPA did not want to
solely point out the dangers of where Al aska was at, but to al so
poi nt out the opportunities as well.

MR. M TCHELL said Alaska's elected |eaders had wi sely enacted a
State Energy Policy (SEP) to aggressively achieve 50 percent
renewabl e energy by 2025. He explained that Al aska had energy
policies that required private energy developnment in addition to
directing fiscal and regulatory reginmes to support private
ener gy devel opnent.

7:44: 06 AM

He said the next opportunity was to transform SEP into state
statutes and directives. He stated that consideration should be
given for positive actions and steps for updating statutes and
regulations to fit the state's aggressive energy policy. He
asserted the need for the whol esal e energy market to open up via
access to publically financed transm ssion |ines.

SENATOR M CCI CHE conmented that he would like to receive off-
line information from M. Mtchell on his ideas and objectives
for the state's evolving energy outlook in addition to thoughts
on how the Regulatory Commission of Alaska (RCA) could be
updated effectively. He noted that Al PPA was noving in a |ogical
di rection.

VR. M TCHELL responded that he would provide additional
i nformati on.

SENATOR EGAN asked if Al PPA's conpani es had any probl ens dealing
with and reaching system tie-in agreenents wth municipal
cooperatives or private entities.

7:46: 19 AM

MR MTCHELL replied that good working relationships were
required with the utilities and cooperatives. He expl ained that
RCA could be inproved to help facilitate relations. He remarked
that PP only accounted for 3 percent of the state's energy use
and that was an indication that roomfor inprovenent existed.

SENATOR EGAN asked if AIPPA found that sonme utilities and
cooperatives gave a push-away feeling and required convincing.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 5- February 21, 2013



MR. M TCHELL answered that there was a little bit of the control
aspects. He explained that AIPPA cane to the market from an
econom c aspect to save noney and reduce costs. He expressed
that a prudent business should be willing to at least |isten and
engage. He noted that at tinmes if a business entity was not
wor ki ng under market forces, the same notivation m ght not exist
that would otherwi se be natural. He stated that he did not want
to mscharacterize things, but IPP had to conpete in the sane
way as utilities and cooperatives. He explained that at tines
| PP had to convince buyers when their power was cheaper.

SENATOR EGAN stated that the Fire Island Conplex dealt wth
initial "pull back."

MR M TCHELL replied that individuals from Fire Island would be
providing their overview in the neeting and could provide
addi tional insight.

COCHAIR COGHI LL noted that analysis would be done to see if
access barriers were built by the RCA or state statutes.

7:49: 57 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL stated that a public utility was required to
assunme responsibility for the power and received a certificate
of public necessity and convenience. She said a public utility
was held responsible if power went out. She asked what happened
to public utilities that agreed to purchase |PP power and the
| PP's power generation went down.

MR. M TCHELL responded that contractual obligations would
require IPP to prove reliability with engineering backup. He
stated that intermttent power like wind and tidal may have
different types of power sales agreenent with a utility than a
"firm power" source from hydro or geothermal. He said |IPP would
be required to be reliable when contractually obligated.

CO-CHAIR BISHOP asked M. Mtchell to include him in his
di scussion with Senator M cciche.

7:52: 09 AM

M KE CRAFT, Omer, Delta Wnd Farm (DW), said DW was a project
| ocated in Delta Junction and within the Golden Valley Electric
Association (GVEA) service area. He explained that he got
involved with DW because he saw an opportunity. He said five
years ago he saw the econony starting to fail in Fairbanks, real
estate devel opnent had dropped and that was what he did for a
living. He said he saw renewable energy as an opportunity to

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 6- February 21, 2013



stay engaged in the market. He explained that he partnered with
several businessnmen in Fairbanks and put together Al aska
Envi ronnent al Power .

MR. CRAFT said he was a person that |ooked for opportunities and
liked to conme up with solutions. He stated that Fairbanks and
the Interior were facing an unprecedented energy crisis. He
noted that people were l|leaving the area due to high energy
costs.

He said it becane apparent to him that once he started to | ook
at DW, it was going to be a key conponent to what was happeni ng
in the Interior with respect to stabilizing energy costs and
creating jobs. He stated that Fairbanks' current energy status
had literally become a matter of life and death for a lot of
people due to respiratory problens from poor air quality. He
stated that Fairbanks did not know if their future energy was
going to cone from the Dalton H ghway, bullet-line, gas
generated power from Anchorage, or the Healy C ean Coal Power
Plant (HCCP). He noted that Fairbanks would have saved $650
mllion in  rate savings if GVEA was operating HCCP since 1999.

7:56: 58 AM

He declared that Fairbanks energy costs were 143 percent higher
than the national average. He addressed energy cost's inpact on
mlitary bases in Fairbanks. He stated that access to |ow cost
energy had a larger inpact on the mlitary individuals and
famlies that lived off-base. He said it was difficult for
individuals to survive on a mlitary pay-grade in Fairbanks.

He addressed Fairbanks' "brown haze" pollution caused by
popul ati on density and atnospheric thermal inversions. He said
Fai rbanks could not dissipate particulates generated by the
Aurora Power Plant |ocated downtown, the Fort Winwight Coal
Plant, and the University of Al aska-Fairbanks (UAF) Coal PIant.
He noted that Fairbank's coal plants were |located within a seven
mle area and within the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA)
non-attai nment area. He added that GVAE s di esel power plant and
the North Pole Refinery also contributed to Fairbanks' pollution
i ssue.

He explained that one of his biggest concerns was that GVEA
annexed Livengood to power a gold mne. He noted that
Li vengood's gold mne would require 100 negawatts (MAN of power
with the electricity generated at the North Pole Refinery, a 33
percent increase in production in the non-attainnent area. He
said one of the reasons GVEA used as a reason for not accepting

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -7- February 21, 2013



the DWF project was due to decreased customers and a shrinking
grid, but GVEA was potentially increasing capacity by 33 percent
for a mning operation while increasing em ssion |evels.

8: 00: 59 AM
MR. CRAFT showed the commttee a photo displaying a cloud of
haze and snoke over Fairbanks.

He stated that when he was |ooking at renewable energy, no one
else was doing it. He said he bought five Skystream w nd
turbines and placed them on the Parks H ghway and referred to it
as Wndworks 101, an $80,000 class. He explained that the
Skystream turbi nes were erected during the mddle of winter and
the installation told himthat wind energy was totally possible.
He noted that he I|ooked at all of the issues wth the
electricity generated from the Skystream turbines for frequency
on the grid, voltage regulation, and dealing with GVEA. He said
after the Skystream installation, Alaska passed the Renewable
Energy Policy and he interpreted the legislation as a green-
l[ight for the private sector to be involved and he created DWF
He said he believed that additional room would be available for
DW to play in the energy market because the RCA was told to
develop a reginme that would entice the private sector. He
decl ared that the energy market changes he had hoped for did not
happen for the private sector.

He explained that the DW Project was in its fifth year. He said
a proposition was made to GVEA in 2011 and the end result would
have saved GVEA $80 mllion over the 20 year life of the
contract. He detailed that his proposition offered electricity
to GVEA for $0.1250 per kilowatt hour (kW) for 20 years flat.
He noted that GVEA's current average cost was $0.1320/kW. He
expl ained that GVEA's highest energy cost facilities were the
Aurora Plant at $0.3600/kWh and the North Pole Refinery at
$0. 1950/ kWh.

He said DW was a $54 mllion project that would create 200
direct construction jobs, provide w nd turbine technician jobs,
and was fully permtted on a 320 acre site in an industrial area
with road access. He disclosed that GVEA turned the DW
proposition down and limted the project to 2 MN a |level where
scal e of econom es did not work.

8: 04: 30 AM

He expl ained that one day of 25.5 MWservice from DWW woul d save
GVEA $52,000 and conserve 37,500 gallons of diesel fuel. He
declared that DW could add 25.5 MW of electricity to the

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 8- February 21, 2013



Interior, do it imediately, and do it for a lot |ess than what
was being done with oil.

MR. CRAFT explained that Fairbanks was facing an issue that
required an EPA Mtigation Plan to be in place by 2014 or
serious issues would result with highway funds and other federal
support. He asserted that DW would help with Fairbanks' EPA
Mtigation Plan. He revealed that 4 mllion gallons of diesel
per year could be taken out of the environnent, saved, and used
somewhere el se in the market.

He said there was no need to build additional power transm ssion
lines for DW. He explained that the Jarvis Creek substation was
three and a half mles away from the DW site with an open-bus
on the 138 kilovolt line that went straight to Fairbanks. He
noted that the added power would nmaximze the transm ssion line
to Fairbanks and increase efficiency by seven percent wthout
havi ng to upgrade the power |ines.

He stated that DWW s ancillary benefits would include bringing
materials through the port of Valdez, shipping via Al aska West
Express to Fairbanks, procuring 800 truckloads of concrete to
build 16 wi nd turbines, and other indirect service jobs.

8:07:55 AM
He noted that Al aska had already invested in DW by stating the
fol | ow ng:

When we bought the 320 acre site, we put up a 100 kW
turbine on our own, that was when | realized the
probl ens we were going to have with GVEA accepting our
project and willingness to do business with us. Wen
HB 152 cane out, we decided to get the state involved
in this because we felt |ike what was happeni ng was
not right. So we applied for a matching grant for $2
mllion and put up a EWI-900 wind turbine. W tried to
involve the Alaska Energy Authority (AEA) and the
Al aska Industrial Developnent and Export Authority
(AIDEA) in the negotiations with GVEA so that the
state could get an idea of the difficulties we were
facing as an independent power producer comng on line
and dealing with a utility. | want to thank the State
of Alaska for allowing us that opportunity through HB
152 and the turbines we have developed there. W are
usi ng Skystreans, the Northern-100, and the EW-900;
all of that technology has been used in the villages
and in renote comunities. The technology that we

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 9- February 21, 2013



devel oped, the nmanufacturers that we brought to
Al aska, all that technology got shared with the rest
of the state, so we feel good about that.

SENATOR G ESSEL said she understood that w nd turbines operated
in a fairly narrow wi nd speed paraneter, if the wnds were too
slow or high they would shut down. She asked if M. Craft had a
graph that showed what the wind |ooked |ike and what power was
reliably generated over the past year.

MR. CRAFT answered yes. He explained that DW did a three year
wi nd study using a Met Tower and a program called W ndographer,
a tool used to analyze wi nd resources. He explained that DW was
looking at a 30 percent capacity factor and that neant an
average of 300 kW would conme from a 900 kW turbine. He noted
t hat wind turbines were only at 100 percent capacity
approximately 3 percent of the year. He stated that electricity
was generated on DW' s 900 kW turbines when w nd speeds ranged
from6.5 mles per hour to 60 mles per hour. He explained that
turbines go into an environnental shutdown when w nd speeds
exceeded 60 mles per hour. He noted that high w nd speeds were
not typical in Delta Junction; the average wnd speed was
approximately 15 mles per hour. He said Delta Junction was
different from other wind regines due to baronetric variances
fromits inland |location rather than coastal |ocations that were
i nfluenced by storns.

8:11:55 AM

COCHAIR COGHI LL said DW may have a barrier with GVEA due to
its energy supply variance. He noted that GVEA would have to run
their turbine in the North Pole area to nodulate DWW s w nd and
asked if that was a power agreenment hang-up.

MR. CRAFT responded that GVEA required DW to do an Integration
Study (1S). He explained that DW' s $100,000 IS was defined by
GVEA and showed DW' s nodul ation would swing the grid 10 MV in
10 mnutes, GVEA's Eva Creek Wnd Farm (ECW) would swing the
grid at 25 MV in 10 mnutes. He said DWW would be easier to
integrate due to a lack of wnd variations. He noted that the
GVEA's North Pole Refinery would be the perfect sw nging reserve
because |ike a car, the power could be throttled up and down. He
di scl osed that a coal plant would be nore difficult to vary due
to the need to get tenperature and steam pressure up. He pointed
out that ECW would be an excellent conplenent due to its
| ocation in another wind regine, approximately 200 west of DWF.
He explained that times when ECW was not w ndy, DW was w ndy.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -10- February 21, 2013



He summarized that DW could be a spinning reserve for ECW, a
poi nt that was brought up in the IS.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL asked if it was cheaper for GVEA to buy power
from DWF rather than GVEA produci ng at a base-| oad- power.

MR. CRAFT replied yes.

COCHAIR COGHILL inquired if GVEA s savings would overcone the
cost of nmintenance caused by throttle variance at their North
Pol e Refinery.

MR. CRAFT responded that there would be a $0.0250/ kWh vari ance
cost and DW s total cost would be $0.1500/ kWh. He stated that
$0. 1500/ kWwh power was |less than GVEA' s increnental voided cost
of $0. 1950/ kW in addition diesel fuel conservation.

COCHAIR COCGHI LL asked if DW was able to get a docket before
the RCA to explain the information that was just presented to
the commtt ee.

MR. CRAFT answered no. He explained that he had applied for a
Certificate of Public Convenience for 25.5 MVN and the RCA
allowed GVEA to be the gatekeeper. He divulged that GVEA was
only willing to provide DW with a 2 MV capped sal es agreenent.
He asserted that because GVEA would not give DW a contract, the
RCA decided it was not in the public's interest to have 25 MW of
wi nd power in Delta Junction.

8:15: 27 AM

SENATOR EGAN asked to clarify that DWW s issue was with GVEA and
RCA.

MR. CRAFT answered yes. He said the RCA basically told DW that
the state energy policy decided by the legislature was
"aspirational ."

CO CHAIR BI SHOP asked if the RCA's comment was in witing.

MR. CRAFT answered yes.

MR. M TCHELL explained that RCA's comment was in a transcript.

SENATOR EGAN asked if the committee <could receive the
transcri pt.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -11- February 21, 2013



MR MTCHELL clarified that an attorney froma utility made the
"aspirational”™ comment on the energy policy. He said correcting
the RCA woul d require statute change.

CO- CHAI R BI SHOP asked that a transcript copy be provided to the
comm ttee.

SENATOR EGAN asked if DW was receiving cooperation from AEA

MR. CRAFT responded that AEA was not in a position to deal with
the situation between DW and GVEA, but noted that AEA had not
addressed the situation. He explained that AEA's job was to find
proj ects.

8:17:41 AM

ETHAN SCHUTT, Senior Vice President, CIRI-Fire Island Wnd Farm
addressed the prior RCA discussions. He said the RCA viewed
itself as a body that enforced rate making and reviewed rate
cases. He explained that the RCA also reviewed propositions for
the creation of new utilities or the addition of authority to
certificate utilities. He said the RCA only reviewed the fitness
of utilities to have a certificate at the initial point and he
had never seen the RCA take a case where they reviewed the
fitness of a utility to continue to provide service unless there
was failure to provide power. He said the RCA viewed its role
very narromy via the statutes that the |egislature had passed.
He said the legislature wuld have to change the RCA's
responsibilities to address market oversight.

8:21:11 AM
MR, SCHUTT explained the Fire Island Wnd Project (FIW) as
fol |l ows:

e FIWP produced 18, 039 negawatt-hours (MM) of electricity.

* Caused no electrical system operational issues going to the
integration of a comercial w nd project.

e Saved Chugach Electric Association (CEA) approxinmately 196
mllion cubic feet of Cook Inlet natural gas.

He expl ained FIWP data from January 2013:

* Produced 6,812 MM of electricity.
* Average wind speed for the nonth was 19.0 nph.
* Predom nant north w nd.

He said FIW' s highlights were as foll ows:

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -12- February 21, 2013



25-year contract wth CEA
Fl at net price of $97/ MM, $0.0970/ kWh.

$65 million of private investnment in the Anchorage energy
mar ket .

MR. SCHUTT explained FIW' s facts as foll ows:

11 General Electric (CGE) XLE 1.6 MW wind turbines wth
total project nanmeplate capacity of 17.6 MN

Expected to annually generate 51, 000 MM.
Primary production nonths woul d be Novenber through March

Annual average for FIW's net capacity factor was 32.5
percent .

He addressed the Fire Island site selection as foll ows:

W nd resource was identified.
Proximty to grid and | oad.

M ni mal envi ronnental inpacts.
Lack of conflicting | and uses.
Avai |l abl e Iand for construction.

8:24:14 AM
He addressed FIWP's history as foll ows:

CIRI obtained Fire Island property in the 1980s.

Wnd resource studied in 2000 by a utility group led by
CEA

CI Rl becane the project devel oper in 2005.
Key permts issued in 2009.

Federal Aviation Adm nistration (FAA) issues were addressed
in 2009.

Prelimnary construction in 2010.
CIRI received permts with project financing in 2011
RCA approval for CIRI's contract with CEA in 2011.

He explained the FIWP | ayout on Fire Island as foll ows:

11 comrercially operating turbines.
22 additional turbine sites avail able for devel opnment.

Addi ti onal infrastructure to support the first phase
operation and mai ntenance building, electric power system
and roads.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -13- February 21, 2013



He addressed FIWP's 2011 project tineline as foll ows:

* FAA determ nation of no hazard issued.

e Commercial contracts and Power Purchase Agreenent (PPA)
* RCA approval of PPA

» Project financing closed.

* On-shore transm ssion |ine construction.

MR. SCHUTT expl ained FIW' s 2012 project tineline as foll ows:

e On-island civil and electrical construction.
e Finished transm ssion interconnection.
e FErected wind turbines on Fire |Island.

e Project commissioning conpleted and commercial operation
began Sept enber 2012.

He addressed FIWP's transnmission line as foll ows:

e 3.1 mles of two parallel 34.5 kilovolts submari ne cabl es.

e 86 mles of terrestrial transmssion lines, 3 mles on
Fire Island and 5.5 onshore to get from Point Canpbell to
the I nternational Substation.

8:26: 24 AM
He summari zed FI WP construction as foll ows:

e Delaney Construction Goup (DCG was the Engineering,
Procurenent, and Construction (EPC) contractor.

 DCG was a Tetra Tech conpany and constructed utility scale
wind projects in Al aska and the Lower 48.

e Significant subcontracts with l|ocal contractors, vendors,
and service providers.

e Significant activity at Port of Anchorage and Port
MacKenzi e.

He provided wind turbine information as foll ows:

e Blade length was 131 feet.

* Hub height was 262 feet.

e Turbine rotational speed was 10 to 19 revolutions per
m nute (RPM.

* Turbine foundation was steel reinforced concrete.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -14- February 21, 2013



He presented the conmttee with a graphic that showed FIW' s
turbi ne hei ght perspective versus Anchorages downtown buil di ngs:
FIWP at 262 feet, Conoco-Philips Building at 296 feet, and
At wood Buil ding at 265 feet.

8:30: 33 AM
MR. SCHUTT summari zed that FIW was difficult to acconplish, but
noted the early operational phase had gone well. He stated that

CIRI had a good working relationship with CEA wth CEA realizing
the value of a non-gas resource within their system He conceded
that FIW's power was intermttent and not the easiest resource
for CEA to handle. He explained that FIW's intermttent power
required coordination for hourly and daily w nd predictions. He
said CIRI's hope was to build additional projects on Fire
| sl and.

SENATOR EGAN asked when FIWP woul d pay off.

MR. SCHUTT replied that the debt on FIW was 20 years with the
cash-equity conponent at nine or ten years. He explained that
CIRI had a flat-net price agreenent for 25 years and retained
operational risk for mmjor maintenance issues. He expl ained that
one of the major nmintenance issues pertained to gearbox
repl acenent that was projected to occur a little nore than once
per turbine. He said gearbox replacenent was an expensive
mai nt enance process and CIRI had a capital reserve built up over
FIWPs early years to fund anticipated gearbox replacenent. He
noted that excessive gearbox replacenent beyond projections
would have a significant inpact on CIRI's returns in FIW's
|ater years. He explained that CR's contract wth CEA
benefited its custoners by shifting risk of loss to a private
party. He stated that CIRl accepted the mmjor maintenance risk
know ngly and based their decision on GE's input. He conmented
that risk shifting was good for the market place and allowed a
utility to avoid rolling risk costs into their rate base.

8:33:32 AM
CO-CHAIR BISHOP summarized that C R owned FIWP and sold
electricity to CEA for $0.0970/ kWh for 25 years.

MR. SCHUTT answered correct.
CO-CHAIR COGHI LL stated that another risk factor was related to
FIWP's power intermttency for CEA He asked what the power

sal es agreenment on CEA's cost of ranping up and down to follow
FI WP,

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 15- February 21, 2013



MR.  SCHUTT replied that CR and CEA had a reciprocal
intermttency paynent of $0.01/kW. He explained that $0.0970
was a net price to CIRI and the $0.01/kWh was considered
additional to cover the integration operational issues to CEA

COCHAIR COGHILL recalled a debate on FIW' s transm ssion line
and the state's contribution towards the project. He asked who
had responsibility for other parts on FIW s transm ssion |ine.

MR SCHUTT answered that the state nmade a $25 nillion
appropriation to construct FIWs transmssion line from the
project to the system He said CIRI built the transm ssion line
and was in the process of turning over the line to CEA He
expl ained that CEA would own and operate the transm ssion |ine
during for the 25 year |ife of FIWP, the sane as the power
purchase agreenent. He said the transmssion |line cost was a
little nore than $25 mnmillion and CIRI funded the renaining
anmount .

CO- CHAIR COGHI LL summarized that the state kept the cost from
goi ng above $0. 09/ kWh.

MR. SCHUTT responded correct. He said the state basically built
the transmssion interconnection and CIR asked for the
appropriation to buy-down the cost of power to CEA. He explained
that the state had previously participated with appropriations
that were simlar to FIWP' s transm ssion interconnection.

CO- CHAIR COGHI LL replied that the state also participated in the
transmssion line for GVEA's northern end. He noted that access
was one of the problems wth DW and asked if access was a
probl em for FIWP.

MR, SCHUTT answered that access was not a problem He said
FIWP''s transmi ssion line cane into a substation that was jointly
owned by CEA and Anchorage Municipal Light & Power. He noted
that the substation puts the power from the new Southcentral
Power Project (SPP) into the grid. He explained that the
| egislature also participated in GVEA's wnd project by
effectively building their interconnection substation.

CO- CHAIR BISHOP noted that everyone was interested in how to
save either natural gas for Cook Inlet or fuel oil in Fairbanks.

8:37:37 AM

BOB CGRIMM CEO, Alaska Power & Telephone (AP&T) Conpany,
addressed creating an IPP market with access to donestic and

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -16- February 21, 2013



export markets. He said IPP required the transm ssion system to
be open-access with a level playing field in order to provide an
energy cost benefit for Al aska.

MR. GRI MM said AP&T was unique due to being an independent power
producer and a regulated utility. He explained that AP&T was
investor owned with the mjority owned by 123 enployees. He
expl ai ned t hat AP&T consi sted of experienced pr oj ect
identification people wwth 17 years of operational experience on
newly built hydroelectric projects. He said AP&T' s professional
engi neering staff consisted of an aggregate 199 years of energy
i ndustry experience. He noted that AP&T had been operating in
Al aska for 55 years and started in Skagway in 1957.

He stated that AP&T denonstrated its ability to identify,
design, and build cost conpetitive hydroelectric projects. He
said AP&T had built and operated two storage and two Run-Of -
River (ROR) hydroelectric projects using the IPP nodel wth
additional projects planned for the future. He detailed that
AP&T's energy m x started at 95 percent diesel and was currently
at 70 percent renewabl e hydroelectric in just 16 years.

He addressed AP&T's future I PP projects as foll ows:

* 5 MV project near Hydaburg on Price of Wles Island, a
joint venture between AP&T and Hai da Cor porati on.

* 9.6 MN Mahoney Lake Hydro Partnership of City of Saxnan,
Cape Fox Corporation, and AP&T. He said the intent was to
have the project sell into the Southeast Alaska Power
Agency (SEAPA) system

e 77 MN project near Hyder with the intent to be the first
project in Alaska to connect to the North Anerican
electricity grid and export power out of Al aska.

e AP&T was performng developnent work on Kootznoowoo's
Thayer Creek Hydro project in Angoon.

8:41: 38 AM

He addressed a study by UAF s Al aska Center for Energy and Power
(ACEP). He said ACEP's study was funded by the National
Renewabl e Energy Lab and published in June 2012. He said the
study's subject was on stranded renewable energy in Al aska and
guot ed the foll ow ng:

Alaska is hone to significant renewable energy
resour ces. Geothermal, wnd, tidal, wave, hydr o,
solar, and biomass resources have the theoretical
potential to not only nmeet the majority of Alaska's

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -17- February 21, 2013



in-state needs, but also provide trenendous economc
and strategic opportunity for the state and the
nation. Despite the many opportunities for devel oping
these resources, there are also significant barriers.
Forenpst anong these challenges is the fact that many
Al aska renewabl e energy resources are stranded, just
like our natural gas on the North Slope. The study
went on to identify that Al aska had 677 negawatts of
geothermal . Al aska has the |argest anount of class-
seven wind, which is the best. In the United States,
Al aska possesses 90 percent of the tidal potential and
50 percent of the wave energy potential of the nation.
Al aska al so has trenendous hydro power potential wth
a well-researched anount that is devel opabl e.

MR CGRIMM said an inportant observation was that the renewable
resources were currently stranded. He explained that Southeast's
resources were unique due to its shared boundary with Canada and
power connections currently existed. He noted Southeast's road
connections to Canada via Hai nes, Skagway and Hyder. He reveal ed
that Hyder was served by British Colunmbia (BC) Hydro and had the
lowest rates in Alaska. He divulged that an undevel oped
transportation corridor had potential near Wangell due to a
nearby transm ssion extension by BC Hydro. He stated that the
barrier to un-strand Southeast's renewable resources was tinely
and af f ordabl e.

8:44.:29 AM

He summarized that Southeast had significant energy resources
that were docunented. He said the barrier to devel opment of the
stranded renewable energy resources were snall conpared to the
other areas within the state. He explained that a new renewabl e
industry would diversify Southeast's struggling econony and
create new green jobs.

COCHAIR BISHOP said the day's overviews had touched on
Interior, Southcentral, and Southeast. He stated that each
region had its own assets to |ower energy costs, but there were
no silver-bullet solutions.

8:46:49 AM

JCEL GROVES, Project Manager, Fishhook Renewable Energy (FRE),
addressed the Fishhook Creek ROR Hydroelectric Project (FCHP) in
Sout hcentral .

MR. GROVES expl ai ned FRE' s background as foll ows:

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 18- February 21, 2013



A limted liability conpany fornmed in 2006 for the sole

pur pose of pursuing FCHP

« Omers consi sted of five | ong-tine Al askans and
prof essional engineers who specialized in small hydro
devel opnent .

e An aggregate of over 100 years of experience in designing,

bui | di ng, and operating renewabl e energy systens.

MR. GROVES addressed FCHP's hydro experience as foll ows:

ROR hydroelectric project in Seward, a 5 MN project on
Fourth of July Creek |located behind the Spring Creek
Correctional Facility, currently in the feasibility stage.

e Consulting on Indian River in Tenakee Springs.

e Consulting on Packers Creek in Chignik Lagoon on the Al aska
Peni nsul a.

* Design and upgrade of Pelican Creek on Chi cagof Island.

* MRoberts Creek, the first independent power producer on
the Railbelt near Palner, a 100 KW ROR hydro project that
has been in operation since 1991.

e Design for Chuniisax Creek in Atka that was comr ssioned in
Decenber 2012, a 250 KW proj ect.

e Several FCHP owners also owned South Fork Hydro Project,
another Railbelt independent power producer project in
Eagle River, a 1.2 MN project currently under construction
that was schedul ed to be operational by the sumer of 2013.

* FCHP owners had worked on 20 projects throughout Al aska

i nvol vi ng engi neering wor k, reconnai ssance studi es,

feasibility studies, permtting, desi gn, construction,

operations, and regul atory conpliance.

8:49:20 AM
He expl ai ned the proposed FCHP as foll ows:

e 24-inch, 7,800 foot Ilong penstock wth 1,000 feet of
vertical head.

* 2 MVinstalled capacity that would provide full electrica
service to approximately 1,000 hones.

» Power would be sold to Matanuska El ectric Association (MA)
to offset their existing and future natural gas fuel needs.

He explained that FCHP would be located in the Talkeetna
Mount ai ns' Hatcher Pass, approximately 60 mles northeast of
Anchorage. He said Fishhook Creek drained the basin where
| ndependence M ne was | ocated, MIle 16.5 on Hatcher Pass Road.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -19- February 21, 2013



MR. GROVES expl ained that the FCHP's penstock route would follow
Fi shhook Creek for several thousand feet and then head overl and
dowmn to the historic nouth of Fishhook Creek where the
power house would be located with a half-m|e underground power-
line extension to the existing MEA power-line.

SENATOR M CCl CHE addressed Al askans talking about the nove to
renewabl e sources for energy throughout the state, yet two
projects were stymed because of environnmental concerns on
streans that did not have anadronous fish. He asked how FCHP
received their permts and what struggles were possible in
nmoving forward with hydro in the future.

MR. GROVES replied that FCHP was still in the permtting phase.
He noted that permtting with fish for ROR hydroelectric plans
were project specific. He explained that projects could be |arge
with minimal fish inpact or small with significant fish inpact.
He said an exanple was the Indian River Hydroelectric Project
(IRHP) in Southeast near Tenakee Springs. He explained that |RHP
had proven to be a real win-win for the conmmunity in providing
| ow cost renewable energy. He noted that design changes were
made to IRHP's fish-pass to enhance the coho salnon fishery. He
noted on the other end of the spectrum was the Packers Creek
Hydroel ectric Project (PCHP) in Southwest Alaska with a very
smal | popul ation of resident Dolly Varden fish. He said PCHP was
having difficulty with the Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane in
obtaining a fish habitat permt due to the resident Dolly
Var den.

8:53:43 AM
He addressed the FCHP schedul e as fol |l ows:

e Initial studies conpleted in 2006.

* Filed permt applications in 2007 and 2008.

* Project was entering its fifth year while permtting
conti nued.

* Project was a conbination of easenents and |eases with the
state and Mat anuska- Susitna Borough, none were in place. He
noted that the Al aska Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
had never |eased state land to an independent power
producer before and there had been a lot of delay in trying
to get the project noving forward.

* Final design and financing conpleted in the fall of 2013.

e Construction during the sumrer of 2014.

* Operation by Cctober 2014.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 20- February 21, 2013



MR. CROVES addressed |[|PP opportunities in Southcentral as
fol | ows:

e 50-plus MW ROR-hydro potential in Southcentral that was
environmental ly, politically, technically, and economcally
vi abl e.

e Potential ROR projects would be greater than 25 percent of
MEA' s existing | oad.

e Private sector would take the devel opnent risk off wutility
books.

e Stable and long term conpetitive pricing.

e Sustai nabl e renewabl e energy resource.

 Supply geographic and fuel diversity.

» Local construction, managenent, and operational jobs.

He expl ained | PP needs as foll ows:

e Predictable and tinely regulatory environnent.
e Access to public infrastructure and markets.
e Fair pricing and contract terns.

8:56: 20 AM

SENATOR M CCICHE stated that he was a big fan of renewable
energy projects. He noted that people demanding a higher
proportion of renewable energy were often the very sane people
that were opposing hydro projects. He said it was a little bit
frustrating as Alaska nmoved forward and it was a tough
st akehol der exercise with each case being unique. He stated that
some of the renewabl e projects were hel ping people to understand
that energy in any form did not conme w thout inpact and working
t oget her was inportant.

SENATOR EGAN asked if the commttee was going to invite M.
Mtchell back for a presentation on the Sweetheart Lake
Hydroel ectric Project (SLHP) in Southeast.

CO- CHAIR BI SHOP replied yes.

MR. M TCHELL stated that he was a devel oper working on SLHP, a
19.8 MW facility south of Juneau. He said he was working on
licensing with the intention of supply energy to Juneau by 2016.
He thanked the conmttee for the opportunity to show what the
private sector was trying to do to help resolve Alaska's huge
probl em of bringing reliable and | ower cost energy to the state.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -21- February 21, 2013



CO CHAI R BI SHOP t hanked Al PPA for their presentations.

8:58: 38 AM
There being no further business to cone before the Senate

Special Commttee on In-State Energy, Co-Chair Bishop adjourned
the neeting at 8:58 a. m

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -22- February 21, 2013



